AMENDED BYLAWS OF GREAT VEST SIDE CLUB OF CHICAGO

Article 1 ORGANIZATION

- 1.1 Name. The name of the corporation (the "Corporation") shall be the "Great Vest Side Club of Chicago"
- 1.2 Offices. The Corporation shall at all times maintain a registered office and agent in the State of Illinois. The Corporation may have other offices both within and without the State of Illinois as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, or the activities of the Corporation may require.
- 1.3 Purposes. The purposes for which the Corporation is organized are exclusively charitable, eleemosynary, benevolent and educational purposes, including, for such purposes, the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as exempt organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be distributable to its directors, officers, or other private persons, except that the Corporation shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in furtherance of the purposes set forth in these Bylaws. No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal income tax under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law) or (b) by a corporation, contributions to which are deductible under section 170(c)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

Upon the dissolution of the Corporation, the board of directors shall, after paying or making provision for the payment of all of the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all of the assets of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of the Corporation in such manner, or to such organization or organizations organized and operated exclusively for charitable, eleemosynary, benevolent, educational and athletic purposes as shall at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), as the board of directors shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by the Circuit Court or the Court of Common Pleas of the county in which the principal office of the

Corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

The Corporation shall distribute its income for each tax year at such time and in such manner as not to become subject to the tax on undistributed income imposed by section 4942 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law). The Corporation shall not engage in any act of self-dealing as defined in section 4941(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), nor retain any excess business holdings as defined in section 4943(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law), nor make any investments in such manner as to incur tax liability under section 4944 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law), nor make any taxable expenditures as defined in section 4945(d) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Law).

Article 2

MEMBERS

- **2.1** Class of Members. There shall be two (2) classes of membership as provided for herein:
 - A) Class A Members shall be as set forth by the Board of Directors. Each Class A Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote.
 - B) Class B Members shall be as set forth by the Board of Directors. Class B Members shall not be entitled to vote on any matter.
 - C) Class A Members shall be issued Certificates of Membership.
 - D) Each Member of the Board of Directors shall be a Class A Member.
- **2.2 Voting Rights.** Each Class A Member shall be entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a vote of the Members.
- 2.3 Termination of Membership. The affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors may suspend or expel a Member, with or without cause, and may, by a majority vote of those present at any regularly constituted meeting, terminate the membership of any Member who becomes ineligible for membership, or suspend or expel any Member who shall be in default in the payment of any applicable dues.
- **2.4 Resignation.** Any Member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Secretary of the Corporation, but such resignation shall not relieve the Member so resigning of the obligation to pay any applicable dues, assessments or other charges theretofore accrued and unpaid.

- 2.5 Reinstatement. Upon written request signed by a former Member and filed with the Secretary, the Board of Directors may, by majority vote, reinstate such former Member to membership upon such terms as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.
- **2.6 Membership.** Membership is open to all males who resided, were born, attended school or have an affiliation with the west side of Chicago.

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- 3.1 Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the Class A Members shall be held at such time and place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. The annual meeting may be postponed in the discretion of the Board of Directors. It is intended that two dinner meetings will be held for the purpose of raising funds for charitable purposes as provided for in Section 1.3 of these By Laws. Either of these meeting may be considered as an Annual meeting and may be attended by Class A and Class B Members.
- 3.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Class A Members may be called by the President, the Board of Directors, or not less than 50% of the Members.
- 3.3 Notice of Meetings. Written notice stating the place, date, and hour of any meeting of Class A Members may be delivered to each Class A Member entitled to vote at such meeting not less than five nor more than sixty days before the date of such meeting, or in the case of a removal of one or more Directors, a merger, consolidation, dissolution or sale, lease or exchange of assets, not less than twenty nor more than 60 days before the date of such meeting. Telephone notice may be given not less than ten (10) Days before the date of such meeting.

In case of a special meeting or when required by statute or by these Bylaws, the purpose for which the meeting is called shall be stated in the notice.

If mailed, the notice of a meeting shall be deemed delivered when deposited in the United States mail addressed to the Class A Member at his or her address as it appears on the records of the Corporation, with postage thereon prepaid.

- 3.4 Record Date. The record date for any meeting of the Members shall be the date on which notice of such meeting is delivered.
- 3.5 Quorum. The Class A Members holding two-thirds (2/3) of the votes which may be cast at any meeting shall constitute a quorum at such meeting. If a quorum is not present at any meeting of Members, a majority of the Members present may adjourn the meeting at any time without further notice. At any adjourned meeting at which a quorum shall be present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the original meeting; withdrawal of Members from any meeting shall not cause failure of a duly constituted quorum at that meeting.
- 3.6 Action Without a Meeting. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Class A Members of the Corporation, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of Members, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so

taken, shall be signed either by all of the Members entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof, or by the Members having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all Members entitled to vote thereon were present and voting.

If a consent is signed by less than all of the Class A Members entitled to vote then at least five days prior to the effective date of such consent a notice in writing of the proposed action shall be delivered to all of the Class A Members entitled to vote with respect to the action taken. Notice shall also be given, promptly after the effective date of such consent, to all Class A Members entitled to vote who have not consented.

3.7 Proxies. Each Class A Member entitled to vote at a meeting of Members or to express consent or dissent to corporate action without a meeting may orally authorize another person or persons to act for him or her by proxy executed in writing, but no such proxy shall be voted or acted upon after six months from its date, unless the proxy provided for a longer period.

Article 4

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- **4.1** General. The affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by its Board of Directors.
- 4.2 Number, Tenure and Qualifications. The number of Directors shall be not less than three. Directors shall be elected annually by the Members at the annual meeting of the Members. If the election of Directors shall not be held at such meeting, such election shall be held as soon thereafter as conveniently possible. Initially, the number of Directors shall be fifteen (15).

Each Director shall hold office until his or her successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified or until his or her death or until he or she shall resign. Directors need not be residents of Illinois or Members of the Corporation.

The number of Directors may be increased to any number or decreased to not fewer than three from time to time by amendment of this Section.

- 4.3 Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held without other notice than these Bylaws at the time of any Special Meeting but at least annually.
- 4.4 Other Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors may provide by resolution the time and place for the holding of additional regular meetings of the Board of Directors without other notice than such resolution.
- 4.5 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by or at the request of the President or any two Directors. The person or persons authorized to call special meetings of the Board may fix any place as the place for holding any special meeting of the Board called by them.

4.6 Notice. Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least five (5) days prior thereto, or, if the removal of one or more directors will be discussed, at least twenty (20) days prior thereto, in either case by written notice to each Director at the address shown for such Director on the records of the Corporation or by telephone not less than ten (10) days before the date of such meeting. If mailed, such notice shall be deemed to be delivered when deposited in the United States mail in a sealed envelope so addressed, with postage thereon prepaid.

Notice of any special meeting of the Board of Directors may be waived in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice either before or after the time of the meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.

Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular or special meeting of the Board need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these Bylaws.

- 4.7 Quorum. At all meetings of the Board of Directors, a quorum shall consist of the majority of all of the Directors then appointed for the transaction of business, provided that if less than all of the Directors are present at such meeting, a majority of the Directors present may adjourn the meeting to another time without further notice.
- 4.8 Manner of Acting. The act of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by statute, the articles of incorporation or these Bylaws.
- 4.9 Action Without a Meeting. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Directors of the Corporation, or any other action which may be taken at a meeting of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all the Directors entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.
- 4.10 Attendance by Telephone. Directors may participate in any meeting through the use of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.
- 4.11 Vacancies. Any vacancy occurring in the Board of Directors or any directorship to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of Directors shall be filled by the Board of Directors. A Director elected to fill a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor.
- 4.12 Removal. A Director may be removed by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors then in office. Such action shall be taken at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for such purpose, and the proposed removal shall be set forth in the notice of any such regular or special meeting, sent at least twenty days prior thereto.

COMMITTEES

- 5.1 Creation of Committees. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the Directors in office, may designate one or more committees, each of which shall consist of two or more Directors and such other persons as the Board shall appoint, provided that a majority of the members of each committee shall be Directors.
- 5.2 Manner of Acting. Each committee, to the extent provided in the resolution creating such committee and except as limited by law, the articles of incorporation or these Bylaws, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation; but the designation of such committees and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual Director, of any responsibility imposed upon it or him or her by law. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution creating a committee, such committee may select its chairman, fix the time and place of its meetings, specify what notice of meetings, if any, shall be given, and fix its rules of procedure which shall not be inconsistent with these Bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors. The act of a majority of committee members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.
- 5.3 Term of Office. Each member of a committee shall continue as such until his or her successor is appointed, unless the committee shall be sooner terminated, or unless such member be removed from such committee, or unless such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof
- 5.4 Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by appointments made in the same manner as provided in the case of the original appointments.
- 5.5 Quorum. Unless otherwise provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors designating a committee, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.
- 5.6 Action Without a Meeting. Any action which may be taken at a meeting of a committee may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all of the members of the committee entitled to vote with respect to the subject matter thereof.
- 5.7 Attendance by Telephone. Members of a committee may participate in any meeting through the use of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

OFFICERS

6.1 Enumeration. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Secretary and a Treasurer. The Board of Directors may also elect one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries or Assistant Treasurers and such other officers as it shall deem appropriate. Officers whose authority and duties are not prescribed in these Bylaws shall have the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person. Initially, the officers of the Corporation shall be as follows:

President - Norman Levin

Secretary - William Woloshin

Treasurer - Jerome Lipman

- 6.2 Term of Office. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Board of Directors and shall hold office until their successors are elected and qualified or until their death, resignation or removal. Vacancies may be filled or new offices created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Election of an officer shall not of itself create contract rights. Any officer elected by the Board of Directors may be removed by the Board whenever in its judgment the best interests of the Corporation would be served thereby. Such removal shall be without prejudice to the contract rights, if any, of the person so removed.
- Corporation. Subject to the direction and control of the Board of Directors, the President shall have general supervision, direction and control of the business and affairs of the Corporation and shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the Board of Directors. Except in those instances in which the authority to execute is expressly delegated to another officer or agent of the Corporation or a different mode of execution is expressly prescribed by the Board of Directors, the President may execute for the Corporation any contracts, deeds, mortgages, bonds, or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, and he or she may accomplish such execution either under or without the seal of the Corporation and either individually or with the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or any other officer thereunto authorized by the Board of Directors, according to the requirements of the form of the instrument. The President may vote all securities which the Corporation is entitled to vote except as and to the extent such authority shall be vested in a different officer or agent of the corporation by the Board of Directors.
- 6.4 Vice President. A Vice President shall perform such duties and have such other powers as shall be assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. In the absence of the President or in the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the President and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions upon the President.

- 6.5 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep a record of all proceedings of the Board of Directors in a book to be kept for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of the records of the Corporation; and perform all duties incident to the office of a secretary and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of Directors.
- 6.6 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have charge of and be responsible for the maintenance of adequate books of account for the Corporation; have charge and custody of all funds and securities of the Corporation, and be responsible for the receipt and disbursement thereof; and perform all duties incident to the office of a treasurer and such other duties as may be assigned to him or her by the President or the Board of Directors. With the approval of the Board of Directors, the Treasurer may delegate specified duties to an Assistant Treasurer or other person for the effective conduct of the affairs of the Corporation.
 - **6.7** Salaries. No salaries shall be paid to any officer or director.

GENERAL

- 7.1 Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers or agent or agents of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.
- 7.2 Checks, Drafts, Etc. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies, or other depositories as the Board of Directors may select. All checks, drafts or other orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation, shall be signed by such officer or officers or agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the President or Treasurer of the Corporation.
- 7.3 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.
- 7.4 Seal. On the corporate seal shall be inscribed the name of the corporation and the words "Corporate Seal" and "Illinois."
- 7.5 Waiver of Notice. Whenever any notice is required to be given under law, the articles of incorporation or the Bylaws of the Corporation, a waiver thereof in writing signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.
- 7.6 **Dues.** The Board of Directors may determine the amount of any initiation fee, if any, and annual dues payable to the Corporation by Members of each class.

7.7 Amendments. The power to alter, amend, or repeal the Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws shall be vested in the Board of Directors. Such action may be taken at a regular or special meeting. The Bylaws may contain any provisions for the regulation and management of the affairs of the Corporation not inconsistent with law or the articles of incorporation.

Article 8

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

The Corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (other than an action by or in the right of the Corporation) by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his or her conduct was unlawful. The termination of any action, suit or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contenders or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, or, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, that the person had reasonable cause to believe that his or her conduct was unlawful.

The Corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party, or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that such person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of such action or suit, if such person acted in good faith and in a manner he or she reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interests of the Corporation, provided that no indemnification shall be made in respect of any claim, issue or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his or her duty to the Corporation, unless, and only to the extent that the court in which such action or suit was brought shall determine upon application that, despite the adjudication of liability, but in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court shall deem proper.

To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been successful, on the merits or otherwise, in the defense of any action, suit or proceeding referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, such person shall be indemnified against expenses (including attorneys' fees) actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection therewith.

Any indemnification under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section (unless ordered by a court) shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances because he or she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Section. Such determination shall be made (i) by the Board of Directors by a majority vote of a quorum consisting of Directors who were not parties to such action, suit or proceeding, (ii) if such a quorum is not obtainable, or, even if obtainable, a quorum of disinterested directors so directs, by independent legal counsel in a written opinion, or (iii) by the Members entitled to vote, if any.

Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit or proceeding may be paid by the Corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding, as authorized by the Board of Directors in the specific case, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the director, officer, employee or agent to repay such amount, unless it shall ultimately be determined that he or she is entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this Section.

The indemnification provided by this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which those seeking indemnification may be entitled under any agreement, vote of disinterested Directors, or otherwise, both as to action in his or her official capacity and as to action in another capacity while holding such office, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a director, officer, employee or agent, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors and administrators of such a person.

The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or who is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such liability under the provisions of this Section.

If the Corporation has paid indemnity or has advanced expenses under this Section to a Director, officer, employee or agent, the Corporation shall report the indemnification or advance in writing to the Members entitled to vote with or before the notice of the next meeting of such Members.